
 
REVISED- MAY 30, 2014 

 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014  
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 PROCLAMATION:   TREASURER OF THE STATE OF OHIO - JOSH MANDEL 

 TASTE OF THE ARTS - MAINSTREET PIQUA 
              PRESENTED TO: LORNA SWISHER, MAINSTREET PIQUA DIRECTOR 
 
    
 PROCLAMATION: FLAG DAY FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2014 
    PRESENTED TO: MR. TOM POHLMAN, PIQUA KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS 
  
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
  
    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approval of the minutes from the May 20, 2014 Regular Piqua City Commission  

 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
2. ORD. NO. 3-14 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance repealing Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new Schedule A 
of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 

 
3. ORD. NO. 4-14 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance repealing Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new Schedule 
A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua 
Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 

 
4. ORD. NO. 5-14 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance to vacate a portion of Public Right-of-Way 
 

5. ORD. NO. 6-14 (2nd Reading) 
An Ordinance authorizing an amendment to Ordinance No. 42-96 and the zoning map attached thereto 
to change the zoning designation of a portion of Parcel N44-075900, to R-1AA One-Family Residential 

 
6. ORD. NO. 7-14 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance to vacate a portion of public right-of-way 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
 
 NEW BUSINESS 
 

7. ORD. NO. 8-14 (1st Reading) 
An Emergency Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 34-08 and codified as ordinance No. 52.20, Exhibit 
A, Electrical Service Rates and Terms 

 
8. RES. NO. R-73-14 

A Resolution amending the employment agreement with Gary A. Huff, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 

9. RES. NO. R-74-14 
A Resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2014 Community Housing Improvement Program application 
and authorizing the City Manager to submit the application 

 
10. RES. NO. R-75-14 

A Resolution approving the Community Development Block Grant Formula Allocation Program 
application for Fiscal Year 2014 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT  
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
 ADJOURNMENT  
 
   
 
  
 
 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday, May 20, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Martin, Terry, Wilson, and Vogt. Absent: None. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING  
 

      RESIDENCE PRIDE AWARDS 
 
       Brad & Maria Bubp     1279 Park Avenue 
       Scott & Dan Shawler    505 New Street 
       John & Mary Spruance     999 Covington Avenue 
       Wade Westfall     295 E. Ash Street 
       John & Mondean Weymer    907 Plymouth Avenue 
 
      PRESENTATION: 
     
      YWCA/Upper Valley Career Center-Red X Champaign for Human Trafficking Awareness 
 
       Leesa Baker and Lynn Marroletti of the YWCA provided information on Human Trafficking, and  
       what is being done in the Piqua area to prevent it. 
 
      Consent Agenda 
      
      Approval of Minutes 
 
      Approval of the minutes from the May 8, 2014 Piqua City Commission Work Session, and the 
      May 6, 2014 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting.      
             
      RES. NO. R-70-14 
 
      A Resolution appointing a member to the Income Tax Board of Review 
 
      Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to approve the Consent 
      Agenda.  Voice vote: Aye: Fess, Martin, Terry, Vogt, and Wilson. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
      unanimously.  
 
     NEW BUSINESS 
 
     ORD. NO. 3-14 
 
     An Ordinance repealing Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a ne 
     Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 
 
    Elaine Barton, Human Resource Director provided the staff report stating Ordinance No, 3-14  
    revises Schedule A which cover non-union employees. The changes include two new positions IT  
    Administrator and SCADA Administrator, and reinstates the positions of Assistant Water  
    Superintendent and Assistant Wastewater Superintendent, and adjusts the title of the Water  
    Distribution Supervisor to Assistant Underground Utilities Superintendent at the same pay range as  
    the other Assistant positions. 
 
 
 



 2

 Public Comment 
  
 No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 3-14. 
 
 Ordinance No. 3-14 was given a first reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 4-14 
 
An Ordinance repealing Schedule A-1 Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new Schedule A-
1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua, 
relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 
 
Elaine Barton, Human resource Director provided the staff report stating Ordinance No. 4-14 makes 
changes to include the position of SCADA Administrator and reflect the change for the Golf Course to 
include the use of a golf cart if available to the summer laborers. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 4-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 4-14 was given a first reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 5-14 
 
An Ordinance to vacate a portion of Public Right of Way 
 
Justin Sommer, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director provided the staff report 
stating Piqua City School District would like to modify the alignment of a portion of public alley right of 
way located between Nicklin Avenue and Camp Street. This will require the existing public alley right 
of way to be vacated and a new public alley right of way be dedicated. The proposed alley realignment 
will allow the new school site improvements to physically separate the alley from the traffic generated 
by the school.   The proposed alley realignment will remain accessible to local residents and passable 
by public utility vehicles, stated Mr. Sommer. 
 
Several questions were raised concerning the use of the alley by the public and residents, the 
configuration of the alley for traffic, fencing on the property along the alley, and safety concerns. 
 
Curt South, Piqua City School representative came forward and answered all questions. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 5-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 5-14 was given a first reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 6-14 
 
An Ordinance authorizing an amendment to Ordinance No. 42-96 and the zoning map attached 
thereto to change the zoning designation of a portion of Parcel N44-075900, to R-1AA One-Family 
Residential 
 
Justin Sommer, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director provided the staff report 
stating this item was presented to the Planning Commission at the request of the owner to  change the 
zoning designation of a portion of the property from I-2 Heavy Industrial to R-1AAA One Family 
Residential.  The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on May 13, 2014 and the property 
owner provided information regarding the reason for the zoning change, stating they would like to 
construct a dwelling unit on a portion of the property. The Planning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the proposed zoning change, stated Mr. Sommer. 



 3

Anthony Scott, Keystone Homes  came forward and answered all questions.   
 
Mike Sherry came forward stating he would like to build a home on the property in question if the 
rezoning is approved. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 6-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 6-14 was given a first reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 7-14 
 
An Ordinance to vacate a portion of public right-of-way 
 
Justin Sommer, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director provided the staff report 
stating the American Legion Post 184 would like to vacate a portion of public right of way located 
between Campbell Street and Downing Street.  The existing alley right of way is currently surrounded 
by the American Legion parking lot and they plan to make improvements and will continue to use the 
pavement to support the adjoining parking area.  The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing and 
all surrounding property owners were notified, with no one from the public attending to speak for or 
against the vacation. 
 
There was discussion on the assessability of the alley from Campbell Street, several other questions 
including if Care Flight would still be able to land in the parking lot. 
 
City Manager Huff explained the process for vacating public right of way, further stating he will share 
the concerns with the applicant. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 7-14. 
 
Ordinance No. 7-14 was given a first reading. 
 
RES. NO. R-71-14 
 
A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Reineke Ford-Lincoln, Inc. for the purchase of a Utility 
Service Truck with service body and air compressor system 
 
Shane Johnson, Assistant Superintendent, provide the staff report stating the new truck will increase 
the effectiveness and efficiency of the Underground Utilities Department filed operations in water 
distribution, wastewater collection, and stormwater maintenance.  The versatility of this truck will help 
the crew by having a truck mounted air compressor system to be used while clearing curb boxes. 
Operating pneumatic tools, and assisting other department as needed, and will provide a back-up air 
compressor and tool truck when W-20 is out for maintenance. 
 
Several questions were raised and Mr. Johnson answered all. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R- 71-14. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-71-14 be 
adopted. Roll call vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-71-14 adopted. 
 
 



 4

RES. NO. R-72-14 
 
A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Culy Contracting, Inc. for the purchase of insertion 
valves 
 
Shane Johnson, Assistant Superintendent, provided the staff report stating the Underground Utilities 
department has identified four location within the older section of the water distribution system that 
have inoperable and deficient valving. The four locations include: 645 W. High Street, 333 W. High 
Street, 321 N. College Street, and the Southeast corner of Downing and High Streets.  Even though 
two lower bids were received they did not meet the specifications required.  Culy Contracting, Inc. was 
the only company that bid to fulfill the specifications as requested. 
 
Questions were raised concerning the price difference, and if all of the valves would be replaced. 
 
Mr. Johnson answered all questions. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-72-14. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-72-14 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor fess then declared Resolution No. R-72-14 adopted. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Ruth Koon, Park Avenue, representing the Friend of the Piqua Parks, came forward and provided a 
brief update on the funding they have received so far, project they are working on, and additional 
plans for the improvements at Pitsenbarger Park in the future.  Ms. Koon thanked City Manager Huff, 
Brian Brookhart, Cindy Holtzapple, Commissioners Vogt and Wilson for all of their help with the 
project. 
 
MONTHLY REPORTS- March 2014 
 
Monthly Reports for March 2014 were accepted. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
City Manager Huff asked Police Chief Bruce Jamison to provide a brief overview of the Human 
Trafficking problem.  Commissioners asked several questions regarding the problem and Chief 
Jamieson answered all questions. 
 
COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated the Community Garden is open and there are still several plots available, 
for more information they can call the Parks Department at 778-2095. 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated the Residence Pride Award winners stating they are helping to 
improve the neighborhoods.  Commissioner Terry reminded citizens to clean up around their homes 
and to keep their properties clear of trash and debris.  Commissioner Terry stated she enjoyed the 
Taste of the Arts again this year. 
 
Commissioner Martin stated he had a good time at the Taste of the Arts.  Commissioner Martin asked 
if it would be possible to ask the Conservancy District not to blow grass out into the street when they 
are moving in the City of Piqua. 
 



 5

Commissioner Vogt stated he attended the Taste of the Arts but stated the rain kept some of the 
residents away.  The music was enjoyed by all, and he is looking forward to hearing them again next 
year. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the weather has put a damper on the Taste of the Arts for the last two years and 
hopes next year will be better weather wise for them. The food was good and thanked all the 
volunteers who worked so hard putting it together. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked the YWCA and Police Chief Jamison for the informative information regarding the 
Human trafficking problem and appreciates all their hard work. 
 
Mayor Fess announced June 14 is the first Rock Piqua Concert in Piqua, also the Piqua Bikefest will 
be held September 19 & 20, 2014 and this is the 100 Anniversary of the Bikefest,  and they hope to 
recreate the picture that was taken 100 years ago. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked the Residence Pride Award winners for keeping their properties so nice. 
 
Mayor Fess stated there are always a lot of things happening in Piqua and reminded residents to 
watch the paper and the City website for more information. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the  Regular 
Commission Meeting into Executive Session at 8:45 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Terry, Martin,  
Wilson, and Vogt.  Nay, None. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

1. To consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline or compensation of the City 
Manager. 

2. To consider pending or imminent litigation. 
 
   Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the   
   Executive Session at 9:31 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Terry, Vogt, and Fess. Nay, None. 

 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  3-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SCHEDULE A OF  
CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA CODE AND ADOPTING 
A NEW SCHEDULE A OF CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA 
CODE, RELATING TO WAGES OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL 
EMPLOYEES 

  
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 

 
SEC.  1: Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, as adopted by 

Ordinance No. 20-13, is hereby repealed; and 
 
SEC.  2: Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code (appended hereto 

as Exhibit “D”) is hereby adopted;   
  
 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
1st Reading 5-20-14         
           
                                                _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 2
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

May 20, 2014, June 3, 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

An Ordinance repealing Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and 
adopting a new Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages 
of certain Municipal Employees 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  Elaine G. Barton, Human Resources Director 
Department: Human Resources 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
X Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager X Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

X Department Director;  Other:  
 

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

Ordinance No. 3-14 revises Schedule A which covers the salaries of non-union employees.  The 
changes are to include two new positions of IT Administrator and SCADA Administrator, re-
instate the positions of Assistant Water Superintendent and Assistant Wastewater 
Superintendent.  Adjust the salary and title of the Water Distribution Supervisor to Assistant 
Underground Utilities Superintendent at the same page range as the other Assistant positions.   
The need for each is detailed on the attached document. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  To be included in re-appropriation 
Expenditure $:  Determined at hiring – provided with re-appropriation 
Source of Funds: Various 
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 3-14 
2. Reject Ordinance No. 3-14 and provide staff with further direction 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

As soon as allowed by law 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Adopt Ordinance No. 3-14 to allow for the positions to be filled to move 
forward with projects that need to be completed. 

ATTACHMENTS  Ordinance No. 3-14 
Schedule A 
Additional information regarding positions and salaries 
 

 









ORDINANCE NO. 4-14 
 

                                 AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SCHEDULE A-1 OF 
                                 CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA CODE AND ADOPTING 
                                 A NEW SCHEDULE A-1 OF CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA 
                                 CODE, RELATING TO WAGES OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL 
                                 EMPLOYEES 

 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
  
 SEC.  1: Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, as adopted by Ordinance 
No. 18-13, is hereby repealed; and 
 
 SEC.  2: Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code (appended hereto as 
Exhibit “E”) is hereby adopted; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
June 1, 2014. 

 
    1st Reading 5-20-14           

                                                                                  
_______________________ 
LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



 

Item # 3
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

May 20, 2014, June 3, 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

An Ordinance repealing Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and 
adopting a new Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to 
wages of certain Municipal Employees 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  Elaine G. Barton, Human Resources Director 
Department: Human Resources 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
X Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager X Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

X Department Director;  Other:  
 

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

Ordinance No. 4-14 revises Schedule A-1 which covers the salaries of seasonal, par-time, and 
temporary employees.  The changes are to include the position of SCADA Administrator and to 
reflect a change for Golf Course to include the use of a cart if available. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  To be included in the re-appropriation 
Expenditure $:  Dependent upon time of hire – provided with the re-appropriation 
Source of Funds: Various 
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 4-14 
2. Reject Ordinance No. 4-14 and provide staff with further direction 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

As soon as allowed by law 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Adopt Ordinance No. 3-14 to allow for the positions to be filled to move 
forward with projects that need to be completed. 

ATTACHMENTS  Ordinance No. 4-14 
Schedule A-1 
Additional information regarding the position 
 

 







ORDINANCE NO. 5-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PORTION OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, the City Commission 

adopted Resolution No. R-62-14 declaring its intent to vacate a portion of public right 

of way known as an alley located east of Nicklin Avenue in the vicinity of Ann Street, 

as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and, 

WHEREAS, a notice of the declaration of intent to vacate the subject right of 

way was served to the abutting property owners and published in the local 

newspaper; and   

WHEREAS, the notice of the declaration of intent stated the time and place at 

which objections could be presented before the Planning Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met at in open sessions and took 

public comment regarding the proposed public right of way vacation; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission after hearing the item and considering 

the public comments and information provided, recommended approving the 

vacation of a portion public right of way known as an alley located east of Nicklin 

Avenue in the vicinity of Ann Street, as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, vacation of public right of 

way must be adopted by Ordinance by this Commission. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 

that: 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby takes the action necessary to 

authorize and approve the vacation of a portion public right of way known as an 

alley located east of Nicklin Avenue in the vicinity of Ann Street, as shown in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall cause the affected portion of right of 

way to be vacated and all appropriate and necessary legal instruments 

supporting such action to be properly recorded. 



SEC. 3:   This Ordinance shall take precedent over all prior Ordinances 

or Resolutions pertaining to the affected portion of the subject public right of way. 

SEC. 4: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law 

      1st Reading 5-20-14 
         
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
        
 

PASSED:   _______________________   

 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

Commission Agenda     Item #4  
Staff Report 
 
 

MEETING DATE May 20, 2014, June 3, 2014 

REPORT TITLE AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PORTION OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The petitioner desires to modify the alignment of a portion of public alley right 
of way located between Nicklin Avenue and Camp Street.  The proposed 
modification of the alley alignment will require the existing public alley right of 
way to be vacated and new public alley right of way provided by the petitioner 
to be dedicated.  The petitioner will be responsible for the removal of all 
existing alley improvements the construction of all new alley improvements. 

The proposed alley alignment modification will allow the new school site 
improvements to be configured in a manner that will physically separate the 
alley from the traffic generated by the school site.  The traffic generated by the 
school site is to be managed on-site and use of the public alley to facilitate 
school related traffic will not be required.  The proposed alley alignment will 
remain accessible to local residents and passable by public utility vehicles. 

The meeting was publicly advertised and surrounding property owners were 
notified of the public hearing time/date/location.  One property attended the 
Planning Commission public hearing to ask questions about the proposed 
improvements.  No objections from the public were received at the public 
hearing.  

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Narrative:  The Planning Commission has studied this request and 
recommended approval of the public right of way vacation 
request, noting that the proper signage to indicate the one-
way traffic patterns on Ann Street will be required. 



OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the ordinance to vacate the subject right of way. 

2. Defeat the ordinance to deny the right of way vacation request. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 15, 2014 – City Commission – Declare Intent to Vacate 

May 13, 2014  – Planning Commission – Public Hearing 

May 20, 2014 - City Commission – 1st Reading 

June 3, 2014 – City Commission – 2nd Reading 

June 17, 2014 – City Commission – 3rd reading 

NOTE - The companion item to this request is the final plat approval to be 
acted on in the form of a Resolution at the May 20 meeting date. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS Vacation Petition, Vacation Plat  

 









0.
04

5 
AC

. T
O 

BE
 V

AC
AT

ED
 H

ER
EI

N

AL
LE

Y 
VA

CA
TI

ON
 P

LA
T

JO
B 

N
U

M
BE

R:

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y:

D
AT

E:

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R

w
w

w
.c

ho
ic

eo
ne

en
gi

ne
er

in
g.

co
m

CI
TY

 O
F 

PI
QU

A 
PL

AN
NI

NG
 C

OM
M

IS
SI

ON

TH
E 

CI
TY

 C
OM

M
IS

SI
ON

 O
F 

TH
E 

CI
TY

 O
F 

PI
QU

A

LE
GE

ND



 

 
 

                                                     ORDINANCE NO. 6-14 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 42-96 
AND THE ZONING MAP ATTACHED THERETO TO CHANGE THE ZONING 
DESIGNATION OF A PORTION OF PARCEL N44-075900, TO R-1AA ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL  

 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has studied a proposed amendment to 
the zoning map to change the zoning designation of a portion of parcel N44-075900, to 
R-1AA One-family Residential; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has conducted a public hearing and 

made a report of its findings; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has submitted a recommendation to the 

City Commission; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Charter Section 154.141 directs the Commission 

to take action on zoning amendment recommendations received from the Planning 
Commission at their next regularly scheduled meeting; and  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Piqua City Commission, a 

majority of its members concurring that: 
 
SEC. 1: The zoning designation of R-1AA One-family Residential for the 

portion of parcel N44-075900 shown on the exhibit attached hereto, is hereby 
approved. 
 

SEC. 2: The zoning map attached to Ordinance No. 42-96 as 
subsequently amended is hereby revised and amended to assign the aforementioned 
zoning designation to the subject parcel, and the City Planner is hereby authorized to 
make said change on the original zoning map. 

 
SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law. 
 

 1st Reading 5-20-14 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



 

 

Commission Agenda      Item # 5   
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE May 20, 2014, June 3, 2014 

REPORT TITLE 
(Match resolution/ordinance title) 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 
NO. 42-96 AND THE ZONING MAP ATTACHED THERETO TO CHANGE 
THE ZONING DESIGNATION OF A PORTION OF PARCEL N44-075900, 
TO R-1AA ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

Department Director  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

This item was presented to the Planning Commission in response to a request 
from the property owner to change the zoning designation of the subject 
property from I-2 Heavy Industrial to R-1AA One-family Residential.     

The Planning Commission held a public hearing concerning this item on May 
13, 2014.  At the hearing the agent for the property owner requesting the change 
spoke in favor of the request.  It was explained that zoning change is desired to 
accommodate the construction of a new dwelling unit that will complement the 
adjacent residential development along Drake Road.  No other persons from the 
public spoke concerning this matter.  

The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed zoning change and 
unanimously recommended approval of the proposed change to the zoning 
designation of this property.   

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Narrative:  The proposed amendment will allow the property owner to 
construct a new dwelling unit. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

1. Adopt the ordinance and approve the proposed change the zoning 
designation of the subject lot. 



 2. Defeat the ordinance and deny the proposed to change the zoning 
designation of the subject lot. 

PROJECT TIMELINE May 13, 2014 – Planning Commission  

May 20, 2014 – City Commission – 1st Reading 

June 3, 2014 – City Commission – 2nd Reading 

June 17, 2014 – City Commission – 3rd reading 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the proposed amendment. 

ATTACHMENTS Zoning Map  

 





ORDINANCE NO. 7-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PORTION OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, the City Commission 

adopted Resolution No. R-62-14 declaring its intent to vacate a portion of public right 

of way known as an alley located between Campbell Street and Downing Street, as 

shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and, 

WHEREAS, a notice of the declaration of intent to vacate the subject right of 

way was served to the abutting property owners and published in the local 

newspaper; and   

WHEREAS, the notice of the declaration of intent stated the time and place at 

which objections could be presented before the Planning Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met at in open sessions and took 

public comment regarding the proposed public right of way vacation; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission after hearing the item and considering 

the public comments and information provided, recommended approving the 

vacation of a portion public right of way known as an alley located between Campbell 

Street and Downing Street, as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, vacation of public right of 

way must be adopted by Ordinance by this Commission. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 

that: 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby takes the action necessary to 

authorize and approve the vacation of a portion public right of way known as an 

alley located between Campbell Street and Downing Street, as shown in Exhibit 

“A” attached hereto. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall cause the affected portion of right of 

way to be vacated and all appropriate and necessary legal instruments 

supporting such action to be properly recorded. 



SEC. 3:   This Ordinance shall take precedent over all prior Ordinances 

or Resolutions pertaining to the affected portion of the subject public right of way. 

SEC. 4: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law 

       1st Reading 5-20-14 
       
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
        
 

PASSED:   _______________________   

 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

Commission Agenda      Item #6   
Staff Report 
 
 

MEETING DATE May 20, 2014, June 3, 2014 

REPORT TITLE AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PORTION OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

SUBMITTED BY Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

Development Department 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

APPROVALS/REVIEWS City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 

Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

City Planner  Planning Commission  

BACKGROUND 
(Description, background, justification) 

The petitioner desires to vacate a portion of public alley right of way located 
between Campbell Street and Downing Street.  The existing alley right of way 
to be vacated is currently surrounded by American Legion parking lot 
improvements and upon vacation of the right of way the pavement area will be 
owned and maintained by the petitioner who intends to continue to use the 
pavement to support the adjoining parking facilities.   

The public hearing time/date/location was publicly advertised and surrounding 
property owners were notified.  The petitioner attended the Planning 
Commission public hearing to speak in favor of this item.  No one else from the 
public was present at the public hearing to speak for or against this item.  

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Project costs and funding sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 

Expenditure $:  0 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Narrative:  The Planning Commission has studied this request and 
recommended approval of the public right of way vacation 
request, noting that alley traffic will still have ingress/egress 
options at both ends via Roosevelt Avenue and Campbell 
Street. 

OPTIONS 
(Include deny /approval option) 

 

1. Adopt the ordinance to vacate the subject right of way. 

2. Defeat the ordinance to deny the right of way vacation request. 

PROJECT TIMELINE April 15, 2014 – City Commission – Declare Intent to Vacate 

May 13, 2014  – Planning Commission – Public Hearing 



May 20, 2014 - City Commission – 1st Reading 

June 3, 2014 – City Commission – 2nd Reading 

June 17, 2014 – City Commission – 3rd reading 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve the ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS Vacation Petition, Vacation Plat  

 









ORDINANCE NO.  8-14 
 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 34-08 
 AND CODIFIED AS ORDINANCE NO. 52.20, EXHIBIT A, 

 ELECTRICAL SERVICE RATES AND TERMS   
 
 
WHEREAS, the City is a member of American Municipal Power-Ohio, Inc. (AMP 

OHIO) and entered into a Power Sales Contract on November 1, 2007; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Power Sales Contract included the planning of the American Municipal 
Power Generating Station (AMPGS) as a future power supply; and 
 

WHEREAS, costs were incurred as a result of the planning and design of the AMPGS as 
a related power supply source; and  
 

WHEREAS; Piqua Codified Ordinance 52.20, Exhibit A defines purchased power cost 
but was written prior to the idea of a power consortium and therefore the definition needs 
amended to reflect the contemplated power supply resources; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to approve the amendment to the definition of purchased 

power cost as the costs incurred for AMPGS are due and payable as an obligation under the 
Power Sales Contract. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Piqua City Commission, a majority of 
its members concurring that: 
 

SECTION 1.  That Ordinance No. 34-08 and Codified as Section No. 52.20, Exhibit A is 
hereby amended in accordance with attached Exhibit A.   
 
SECTION 2.  This Ordinance is declared an emergency for the immediate preservation of the 
public peace, health or safety in the City of Piqua and because the City of Piqua is under 
legal and moral obligation to pay costs incurred under the American Municipal Power 
Generating Station project. 

 
 
        ____________________________________ 
        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 































RESOLUTION NO. R-73-14 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH  
GARY A. HUFF, ICMA-CM, CITY MANAGER 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua entered into an employment agreement with Gary 
A. Huff on September 29, 2011 (R-119-11) to fill the office of City Manager and 
amended the agreement on January 3, 2012 (R-5-12); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has evaluated the performance of the City 
Manager as per the agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Commission to fulfill the terms of the 
agreement per Section 1 – Salary -  to grant a salary increase to the City Manager; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Commission wishes to change the effective date of the 
agreement to run indefinitely in accordance with Section 30 of the Piqua Charter; 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 

Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
SECTION 1:  The agreement appended hereto (Exhibit “A”) between the 

City and Gary A. Huff is hereby approved; 
 
SECTION 2:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 

after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 
 
PASSED:      
 
 
ATTEST:      
    REBECCA J. COOL 
    CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 

 



 1

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
for Gary A. Huff 

 

The following agreement is an employment agreement between the City of Piqua, Ohio 

and Gary A. Huff.  Gary A. Huff agrees to devote his working time and best efforts to 

perform the services of City Manager of Piqua under the following terms, all of which are 

subject and subordinate to Section 30 of the Piqua Charter: 

1. Salary 

The City Manager’s current salary is $120,000.  The City Commission, following 

the annual evaluation of the City Manager’s performance, have granted an 

increase in his annual salary of two percent (2%) to be effective May 1, 2014 and 

a two percent (2%) increase on January 1, 2015.   Thereafter, the increase based 

on the evaluation and the economic conditions of the City will be granted on 

January 1st.   

2. Automobile Allowance 

The City shall provide a monthly $400.00 allowance to the City Manager in lieu 

of providing a vehicle, insurance, maintenance, or operating expenses.  The City 

Manager shall be entitled to reimbursement for any mileage outside of a fifty-mile 

radius of the City for City business and to be reimbursed pursuant to general City 

policy. 

3. Retirement 

Manager shall be included in PERS (Ohio Public Employee Retirement System).  

3.1  The City shall pay $5,000 per year into the Manager’s 457 Deferred 

            Compensation Account with the ICMA Retirement Corporation.  



 2

 

 

4. Termination 

The City Manager shall be entitled to 12 months of annual salary at the rate the 

City Manager is earning at the time of termination, family health insurance 

coverage equal to the City and Manager cost on the last day of employment, plus 

the accumulated value of vacation and personal leave, payable in one lump sum in 

the event that the City Manager’s employment is terminated by the City.  The 

City Manager shall not be entitled to the severance compensation described herein 

if he resigns his employment with the City, or in the event that he is terminated 

for the commission of a felony in violation of federal, state, or local law. 

4.1  As a result of any legal disputes between the parties regarding this agreement 

and requiring legal actions or proceedings, legal costs for the Manager shall be the 

responsibility of the losing party. 

5. Vacation 

The Manager shall accumulate vacation time at the rate of 15 days per year.  

Vacation should be used during the anniversary year that immediately follows the 

anniversary year during which the vacation was earned.   

6. Residency 

The Manager shall remain a resident of the city as long as he holds the position. 

7. Sick Leave 

Manager shall be entitled to earn and accumulate sick leave on the basis of one 

and one quarter days for each month of service.  Manager will not be entitled to 



 3

receive compensation for these hours if terminated, except as provided in Chapter 

33.   

8. General Business Expenses 

The City agrees as budget permits to pay for professional dues and subscriptions 

of the Manager necessary for continuation and full participation in national, 

regional, state, and local associations and organizations necessary and desirable 

for the Manager’s continued professional participation, growth, and advancement, 

and for the good of the City. 

8.1  The City agrees, as budget permits, to pay for travel and subsistence expenses 

of Manager for professional and official travel, meetings, and occasions to 

adequately continue the professional development of the Manager and to pursue 

necessary official functions for the City, including but not limited to the ICMA 

Annual Conference, the Ohio Municipal League, the Ohio City-County 

Management Association, and other national, regional, state, and local 

government groups and committees in which the Manager serves as a member. 

8.2  The City agrees as budget permits to pay for travel and subsistence expenses 

of Manager for short courses, institutes, and seminars that are necessary for the 

Manager’s professional development and for the good of the City. 

8.3  The City acknowledges the value of having Manager participate and be 

directly involved in local civic clubs or organizations associated with municipal 

government and/or the practice of his profession.  Accordingly, City shall pay, as 

budget permits, for reasonable membership fees and/or dues to enable the 

Manager to become an active member in local civic clubs or organizations.  



 4

Manager shall provide a list to the City Commission for pre-approval of those 

organizations he wishes to join before doing so. 

8.4  The City shall provide Manager with an in-office computer, software, cell 

phone for both business and personal use, and other office equipment required for 

the Manager to perform the job and to maintain communication. 

9. Outside Activities 

 The employment provided for by this agreement shall be the Manager’s sole  

employment.  Recognizing that certain outside consulting or teaching 

opportunities provide indirect benefits to the City and community, the Manager 

may elect to accept limited teaching, consulting, or other business opportunities 

with the understanding that such arrangements shall not constitute interference 

with nor a conflict of interest with his responsibilities under this agreement.  

Manager shall seek pre-approval of the City Commission before accepting any 

such opportunity. 

10. Hours of Work 

It is recognized that the Manager must devote a great deal of time outside the 

normal office hours on business for the City, and to that end the Manager shall be 

allowed to establish an appropriate work schedule. 

11. Effective Date 

This agreement shall take effect as early as allowed by law and shall run 

indefinitely in accordance with Section 30 of the Piqua Charter.  

  11.1  This agreement will be adopted in an open meeting of the City Commission 

and will be a matter of public record. 



 5

   

    

By:  ________________________________  Date:      

Gary A. Huff 

 

           

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Mayor Lucinda Fess    Commissioner John Martin 

_________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Commissioner Judy Terry   Commissioner Joseph Wilson 

_________________________________ 

Commission William Vogt 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-74-14 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2014 COMMUNITY HOUSING 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM APPLICATION AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO SUBMIT THE APPLICATION 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is a unit of local government that possesses the legal 
authority to apply for Small Cities Community Housing Improvement Program funds available 
through the State of Ohio, authorized under the Housing and Community Development Act of 
1974, as amended, and the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has housing and community development needs that can 
be improved and alleviated with State assistance;  

 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is eligible for $350,000 in Fiscal Year 2014 Community 
Housing Improvement Program funds, through a competitive program and depending upon 
available funding;  

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Commission of the City of Piqua, a 
majority of members agreeing hereto that: 

 SEC. 1:  The Fiscal Year 2014 Community Housing Improvement Program 
is hereby approved and Gary A. Huff, City Manager, is hereby authorized and directed to submit 
the City’s program application to the Ohio Development Services Agency, including all 
understandings and assurances therein on or before the due date of June 6, 2014. 

 SEC. 2:  Gary A. Huff, City Manager, is to be the designated agent of the 
program in connection with the application and is authorized to execute all agreements in 
conjunction with the Fiscal Year 2014 Community Housing Improvement Program. 

 SEC. 3:  The proposed program will include the following activities. 

1. Private Owner Rehabilitation Activity, 5 units, Maximum Hard Cost Assistance of 
$30,000 per unit.  Maximum assistance for document recording, inspections, lead 
testing and other costs of $3,500 per unit.  Total maximum assistance of $20,000 per 
unit. 

2. Home Repair Activity, 11 units, Maximum Hard Cost Assistance of $8,000 per unit.  
Maximum assistance for document recording, inspections, lead testing and other soft 
costs of $2,000 per unit.  Total maximum assistance of $10,000 per unit. 

3. Rental Rehabilitation Activity, 2 units.  Maximum Combined Assistance of $20,000 
per unit. 



4. New Construction Activity, 1 unit, Maximum Hard Cost Assistance of $20,000 per 
unit and Maximum assistance for document recording, inspections, lead testing and 
other soft costs at $2,000 per unit.  Total maximum assistance of $22,000 per unit 

5. General Administration of the program, including Fair Housing Outreach and 
Education, not to exceed at $35,000. 

SEC. 4:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 

      _________________________________ 

      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 

PASSED: ________________________ 

ATTEST: ________________________ 

  REBECCA J. COOL 

CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 

 

 

 



 

Item # 8
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

6 June 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year 2014 Community Housing 
Improvement Program Application and Authorizing the City Manager to Submit 
the Application. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department:  Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X  Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
X  Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
X  Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Since 2001, the City of Piqua has received over $2.5 million in competitive 
grant funding to administer our local Community Housing Improvement 
Program.  This fiscal year, the City of Piqua has been invited by the Ohio 
Development Services Agency to apply for $350,000 for providing housing 
services and opportunities to low to moderate income households.   It should be 
noted that this amount is lower than the past amounts of $500,000.  Severe 
funding cuts have caused the competition for these funds to be much more 
competitive and in response, the Ohio Development Services Agency has 
lowered the maximum amount available to $350,000.  
 
The City of Piqua is required to undertake a comprehensive public participation 
process in developing the application.  A public meeting was held on April 2, 
2014 where representatives from human service organizations, the local 
landlord association, realtors and the general public were invited to participate.  
Through a prescribed process from the Ohio Development Services Agency, the 
individuals in that meeting prioritized the activities proposed in the application. 
 
Those activities rated as High were:  Home Repair, Private Owner 
Rehabilitation and New Construction. 
 
Those activities rated as Medium were:  Rental Rehabilitation. 
 
 
A second public meeting was held on where individuals could comment on the 
final application.  This meeting was held on May 13th. 
 
It should be noted that this year, funding for the Community Housing 
Improvement Program is extremely competitive.  The funding for this program 



ultimately comes from Federal appropriations for the CDBG and HOME 
programs.  The Ohio Development Services Agency had both their funding 
allocations for this program cut severely.  This means that the expected number 
of awarded grants this year is expected to be 60 grants from an expected number 
of 110 applicants.  This will be programs most competitive program year in 
history.   
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0 
Expenditure $:  $0 
Source of Funds:  
Narrative:  There is no budgetary impact on the filing of the 

application. 
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Adopt the Resolution and file the application. 
2. Deny the Resolution and reject the application and provide further 

direction. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

The City should be aware of whether this competitive application was approved 
later this fall and will begin implementing the program in January 2015.  All 
projects in this grant cycle will be completed by October 2016. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt the resolution which would 
allow for the filing of the application with the Ohio Development Services 
Agency.   

ATTACHMENTS   

 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-75-14 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
FORMULA ALLOCATION PROGRAM APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is a unit of local government that possesses the 
legal authority to apply for Small Cities Community Development Block Grant funds 
available from the Ohio Department of Development, under the Federal Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has housing and community development needs 
that can be improved and alleviated with this assistance; and,  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, a majority of all members elected thereto concurring that: 
 

SEC. 1:  The Fiscal Year 2014 Formula Allocation Program 
application is hereby approved and the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed 
to submit the City’s program application to the Ohio Department of Development, 
including all understandings and assurances therein. 
 

SEC. 2:  The City Manager is authorized to be the designate agent of 
the program in connection with the application and is authorized to execute all 
agreements in conjunction with the Fiscal Year 2014 Program. 
 

SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
             
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
  REBECCA J. COOL 
  CLERK OF COMMISSION  



 

Item #10 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 3, 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution Approving the Community Development Block Grant Formula Allocation 
Program For Fiscal Year 2014 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department: Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X  Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager    Asst. City Manager/Finance 
   Asst. City Manager/Development    Law Director 
   Department Director;  X Other:  City Engineer  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Each year, the City of Piqua receives an allocation from the Ohio Development 
Services Agency to implement local activities through the Community 
Development Block Grant program.  The allocation for 2014 is $75,000, which is 
the same amount last year 
 
Projects were solicited from city staff and a public hearing was held in January 
to solicit ideas for projects. It was determined that the project that would be 
proposed for funding is the replacement of sidewalks on Garnsey Street 
between Downing St. and Roosevelt Ave.  This project is estimated to 
$61,853.55 in which the grant will pay for $60,000 of the amount.  The 
remaining dollars will be paid for by the City’s Engineering Department and the 
additional $15,000 in grant dollars goes towards administrative and fair 
housing costs, as required by the State of Ohio. 
 
A public hearing on this project will be held on June 5, 2014. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $75,000 
Expenditure $:  $0 
Source of Funds:  $0 
Narrative:  This is for the application of funds, not for expenditure of 

funds at this time.   
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Approve the Resolution – Approving the Resolution would allow the City to 
receive funding for this project. 

2. Deny the Resolution – Denying the resolution would cause the City to forgo 
their formula allocation for Fiscal Year 2014. 

3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

The City will receive grant agreements later this fall and will work to implement 
the program throughout 2015.  The community will complete all projects by 



 December 31, 2015.

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends that the City Commission approve the resolution.   

ATTACHMENTS   

 




